
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
September 11, 2012 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 28, 2012 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 978) – Proposed Troy 7-Eleven, 

Southeast Corner of Crooks and Wattles (3984 Crooks), Section 21, Currently Zoned NN 
(Neighborhood Node “I”) District 

 
CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 

 
6. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy Plaza, 

West side of Crooks, South of Square Lake (5500 New King), Section 8, From PUD 13 
(Planned Unit Development 13) to CB (Community Business) and OM (Office Mixed Use) 
Districts 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on August 28, 2012 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the Agenda to include Beachview Estates Site Condominium as 
Agenda item 8. A. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Strat (arrived 7:04 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:04 p.m.] 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08-059 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 14, 2012 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported there was no Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting in August. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting in 
August. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the proposed Charter One Bank Branch Conditional Rezoning 
request, 125 Stephenson Highway and 1250 W 14 Mile Road (Planning Department 
File Number CR 007).  The item was postponed at the August 27, 2012 City Council 
meeting at the request of the current property owner. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
The petitioner was not present at this time.  The Board agreed to move to Agenda item 
8.A. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

8. A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Beachview Estates Site Condominium, 
West side of Beach Road, 1000’ South of Long Lake, Section 18, Currently Zoned R-1A 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
The Board considered this item at their June 26, 2012 Special/Study meeting.  After 
discussion, the item was postponed to allow the petitioner time to consider an alternate 
plan with the intent to address comments and concerns expressed by the Board. 
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, provided revised plans utilizing the 
one-family cluster option.  The revised plans were digitally distributed to members prior 
to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle gave a cursory 
review of the proposed revised plans. 
 
Mr. Maniaci was present and addressed comments and questions from staff and Board 
members. 
 
The site plan as revised received favorable comments from the Board. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

REVIEW (File Number SU 397) – Proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, West of 
Crooks, South Side of Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed application and recommended approval upon 
confirmation from the Fire Marshal that the fire access is sufficient. 
 
The petitioner, Jeff Thompson, was present.  Mr. Thompson shared some historical 
facts about the company. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 28, 2012 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2012-08-060 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Fisher Dynamics Metal Forming, located on the west of Crooks, south side of 
Maple (1625 W. Maple), Section 32, currently zoned MR (Maple Road) District, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2012 PC Minutes\Draft\2012 08 28 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



  PC 2012.09.11 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
DATE: September 7, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 978) – Proposed Troy 7-

 Eleven, Southeast Corner of Crooks and Wattles (3984 Crooks), Section 21, 
 Currently Zoned NN (Neighborhood Node “I”) District 

 
 
 
The petitioner Harrison French & Associates LTD submitted the above referenced Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval application for a 7-Eleven.   
 
The property is currently zoned NN (Neighborhood Node “I”) District.  The Planning Commission 
is responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 978 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 978  Troy 7 Eleven  Sec 21\SP-978 PC Memo 09 11 12.docx 
 
 



 
PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 978) – Proposed Troy 7-
Eleven, Southeast Corner of Crooks and Wattles (3984 Crooks), Section 21, Currently 
Zoned NN (Neighborhood Node “I”) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-09- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for proposed Troy 7-Eleven, located on the southeast corner 
of Crooks and Wattles, Section 21, within the NN (Neighborhood Node) district, be 
granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Address required site plan information identified in the report prior to Final Site 
Plan Approval. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 978  Troy 7 Eleven  Sec 21\SP 978 PC Resolution 09 11 2012.doc 



3984 Crooks, Troy 7-Eleven

8/14/2012

Legend

1: 562

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

47094 94Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



3984 Crooks, Troy 7-Eleven

8/14/2012

Legend

1: 749

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

620125 125Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 Date:  August 28, 2012 

  
 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Project Name: Troy 7-Eleven  
 
Plan Date: August 28, 2012 
 
Location: Southeast corner of Crooks Road and Wattles Road 
 
Zoning: Neighborhood Node I 
 
Action Requested: Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant proposes to develop a 3,200 sq.ft 7-Eleven at the southeast corner of Crooks Road and 
Wattles Road.  The 0.64 acre site is currently improved with a single-family home.   
 
The site is zoned Neighborhood Node I.  The building placement complies with neighborhood node 
building placement requirements.  Two points of access to the site are proposed, one off Crooks Road 
and one off Wattles Road.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

2 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
 Southeast corner of Crooks Road and Wattles Road 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
0.64 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to develop a 3,200 sq.ft 7-Eleven 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently improved with one single-family house. 
 



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

3 

Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Neighborhood Node I, site type B. 
 
Surrounding Property Details 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North Neighborhood Node I, site type B Vacant 
South Neighborhood Node I, site type B Single-family residential 
East Neighborhood Node I, site type B Single-family residential 
West Neighborhood Node I, site type B Single-family residential 

 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

Neighborhood nodes are located at major intersections adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  These 
nodes are intended to serve as commercial and mixed use centers serving as places to meet the basic 
needs of the neighborhoods, as well as the community as a whole.  The key parcels within the 
neighborhood nodes are the corner parcels at these major intersections.  Because the parcel in question 
is a corner parcel, its importance to develop under the regulations of Site Type B and the design 
standards outlined in the Neighborhood Node is a key to the future development and the 
implementation of Neighborhood Node I.  Specifically looking at this parcel, the intent of the 
Neighborhood Nodes is to develop urban building forms at these major intersections.  These urban 
building forms are predicated on buildings placed on the street, and the incorporation of architectural 
details, most notably ground floor story activation.   
 
As required by the ordinance, the applicant has placed the building to the 10’ build to line along Wattles 
Road and set the building back along Crooks Road but provided a pedestrian area.  The building 
placement complies with the form based district requirements.    
 
Items to be Addressed:   None 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
The site is being developed as Building Form A, which is a permitted building form for Site Type B.  Table 
5.03.B1 establishes the dimensional requirements for the building form A: 
 

  Required Provided Compliance 
Front (Crooks) 10 foot build-to-

line 
19 feet; however applicant is 

proposing a 7-foot wide 
pedestrian area with 2-foot 
allowance for landscaping. 

Compiles 

Front (Waddles) 10 foot build-to-
line 

10 feet Complies 

Side  NA NA Complies 



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

4 

 
Items to be Addressed: Provide open space requirement information   
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access and Circulation: 
 
The site will be accessed of an existing curb cut off Crooks and a new curb cut off Wattles.  The applicant 
is providing a drive-aisle width of 24-feet.   Access and circulation is sufficient. 
 
Cross Access 
 
The intent of neighborhood nodes is to serve as commercial and mixed use centers serving as places to 
meet the basic needs of the neighborhoods.   By developing the corner parcel there is increased 
potential to develop surrounding properties including immediately adjacent properties.  In order to 
integrate sites, provide better site circulation, and reduce the number of curb-cuts cross access is 
required.  The applicant has provided two cross access easements and stubs at the southeast corner.  
These easements will allow future connection to both the south and east property when they develop in 
the future.  The City and applicant are working on cross access easement and performance guarantee 
provisions, which will be approved as part of the final site plan approval.   
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
While, there is an existing sidewalk along Wattles Road, the applicant proposes to expand the portions 
to 8 feet.  The sidewalk narrows to 5-feet near the Crooks Road/Wattles Road intersection. The 
narrowing is necessary due to location of utilities.  The applicant is proposing to build a new 8-foot wide 
sidewalk on Crooks Road. The proposed sidewalk and ramps at the corner of Crooks and Wattles were 
just reconstructed as part of the RCOC Crooks Road project.  There should be no changes proposed to 
this area as part of the project unless it is absolutely unavoidable.  Pedestrian access from Crooks and 
Wattles will be via a pedestrian walkway from the corner. New sidewalk from the site should tie into 
and match the existing sidewalk at the intersection.  In addition, the applicant proposes a pedestrian 
area in front of the crooks road elevation. The applicant notes that the proposed sidewalks will carry 
through each drive approach. 
 
Items to be Addressed: New sidewalk from the site should tie into and match the existing sidewalk at the 
intersection. 
 

Open Space 30 percent It appears that site exceeds 30% 
open space requirement; 

however detailed information 
has not been provided.  

Information not provided 

Building Height Minimum 14 feet 
Maximum 45 feet 

Exceeds 14 feet Complies 

Parking Not located in 
front yard + 
screening 

Not located in front yard and 
screened 

Complies 



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

5 

PARKING 
 

Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 
 Required Provided 
Retail (1 space per 250 square 
feet of gross feet area) 

3,264 sq.ft / 250 = 13 14 spaces   

   
Barrier Free 1 1 
Bicycle Parking 2 2 
Total 13 automobile + 2 bicycle 14 automobile + 2 

bicycle 
 
The applicant has provided sufficient parking.  If desired, the applicant may also park at least two 
automobiles in the cross access stubs located at the southeast corner of the site.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan.  The plan provides all necessary calculations regarding 
greenbelt, street trees, and parking lot landscaping requirements.   
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Greenbelt: 10 feet in width along Crooks 
Road and Wattles Road  
 
 

10 feet 10 feet Compliant  

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

Crooks: 5 
street trees 
 
Wattles: 7 
street trees  

Crooks: 3 
 
Wattles: 8 

The applicant 
notes that they 
are not able to 
plant required 
number of street 
trees along 
Crooks due to 
both buried and 
overhead utility 
lines.  

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% Exceeds 20% 
requirement 

Compliant   

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 

6 trees  9 trees Compliant 



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

6 

commission approval.   
Screening Between Land Uses: 80% 
opacity 
 

80% opacity 
with one of 
three options 

Alternative 3: mix 
of large and narrow 
evergreen trees 

Compliant 

Detention: landscape with natural 
plantings and replicate a natural design 
and appearance 

Natural 
planted 

Natural planted Compliant 

 
While the applicant is short by two (2) trees along Crooks Road, the applicant exceeds the landscape 
requirements along Wattles Road, parking lot planting, and overall site landscaping.     
 
Fence: 
 
The applicant is proposing a 4’ high metal decorative fence along the pedestrian plaza on the Crooks 
Road elevation.  The fence meets ordinance requirements and will provide a buffer along Crooks Road.  
 
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The applicant shows one (1) new trash enclosure.  The applicant proposes to screen the enclosure with 
brick to match the building.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None  
 
PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The applicant has provided a lighting (photometric) plan.  The applicant proposes four (4) building lights 
and four (4) pole parking lot lights.  The applicant should confirm that building light fixture is a full cut-
off fixture or a fully shielded fixture, downward directed with a flat lens to prevent glare. In addition, the 
applicant should install a light above the building entrance off the west façade.  Lastly, the applicant 
shall confirm that lights will be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise. 
  
Items to be Addressed:  1). Confirm that building light fixture is a full cut-off fixture or a fully shielded 
fixture; 2). Install a light above the building entrance off the west façade; and 3). Confirm that lights will 
be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise. 
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
Developments within neighborhood nodes must comply with Design Standards outlined in section 
5.06.E.   
 
Building Orientation and Entrance 
 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.  Complies 
 

b. Recessed Doorways.  Where the building entrance is located on or within five (5) feet of a lot line, 
doorways shall be recessed into the face of the building.  Not applicable  



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

7 

 
c. Residential Dwellings.  Entrances for all residential dwellings shall be clearly defined by at least 

one (1) of the following: 
I. Projecting or recessed entrance.  A recessed entrance is required if the building entrance 

is located on or within five (5) feet of the lot line. 
II. Stoop or enclosed or covered porch. 

III. Transom and/or side light window panels framing the door opening. 
IV. Architectural trim or unique color treatments framing the door opening 

 
 Not Applicable  
 
Ground Story Activation 
 

a. The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent 
windows and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or 
parking area shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are 
permitted up to 80% of the 50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of 
buildings.  The minimum transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut 
an open space, including a side yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall 
not apply to sides which abut an alley. 

 
The applicant proposes a mix of storefront glass, sills, awnings, and soldier courses, to comply 
with this requirement.  Through the use of windows as well as changes in horizontal and 
vertical scaling, variations in material, pattern, and color, the applicant complies with this 
standard. 
 

Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
Through the use of setbacks, and landscaping, the applicant has met this requirement.  

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.    
 
The applicant has exceeded the required parking.  See parking section.    
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.    



7-Eleven 
August 28, 2012 

8 

Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred  (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection.  
 
Complies 

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less.  
 
Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.   
 
The applicant has screened their parking lot in compliance with section 13.0.2.C. 

  
Items to be Addressed:  None   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The following items should be addressed by the applicant prior to site plan approval: 

1. Provide open space requirement information   
2. New sidewalk from the site should tie into and match the existing sidewalk at the intersection;  
3. Confirm that building light fixture is a full cut-off fixture or a fully shielded fixture 
4. Install a light above the building entrance of the west façade 
5. Confirm that lights will be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise. 

 

 

















248

248

43

43

600
601

210

210210

210

478

478

161

154
154

155

179

157

165

165

179
160

160
161

173
161

162

161 162 161

161164 164 161
179

162159
159

179 160

164

89

164

177
178

177
178

161

79

173

161

MERCHANDISE

BACKROOMOFFICE

COFFEE ISLAND

LOW TEMP

ICE

28

POS

POS

M
/W

SAFE

SALES

5' CIGS
4' OTP

CHILI
CHEESE

CONDI

R
O

LL
ER

G
R

IL
L

R
O

LL
ER

G
R

IL
L

OTP

MEN

WOMEN

COOLER

POST
MIX

BEVERAGE BAR

4 B
SLUR

615

500

610

91

8989

401

516

517

127

133

126

126

126

126 126

126

126

126

126

126

126

127

41

127 42

127 127

126

126

126

BAKERY
CASE A

BAKERY
CASE B

PMU

PMU

FRITO
END
CAP

4' - 2"

134
5' - 0"

5'
 - 

9"

5'
 - 

9 
1/

2"

4'
 - 

6"

5'
 - 

3"

4'
 - 

0"

90

90

90

ATM

NEWS

NOVELTY

23

29
27

24 24 24 CO2

117

118

116

120

6' - 8"

ELECTRICAL

211

SANDWICH
CASE

LAYOUT INFORMATION

ROLLER GRILLS 2
SANDWICH CASE CID
VAULT DOORS 12
LOW TEMP DOORS 2
ICE MERCH. DOORS 1 DR
NOVELTY CASE 1
BAKERY CASE 2
SLURPEE BARRELS 8

GONDOLA UNITS 29
END CAPS 6
HIGHWALLS 0

TOTAL 35

TOTAL SQ FT = 3,267
SALES FLOOR AREA = 2,208

TROY, MI - EQUIPMENT LAYOUT 4

N
WEST WATTLES RD HFA #12-99007

                   LAYOUT LAST APPROVED 7-23-2012

9-4-2012

4 B
SLUR

BOTTLE
ROOM

3'
 - 

1 
1/

2"

3'
 - 

10
 1

/2
"

6' - 6"

4' - 2" 4' - 2"

74

8271

115

44

65

82

70

70

86

64

96

114

114

13 3 104 2 17 58 39 39 33 46 49

55

49

360

78 11
7473 738576

16

10

1
218

65

84

82

57 83 198 48 16

101

59
' -

 2
 1

/2
"

59' - 7 1/2"

5' - 10 1/2"

7' - 6"

8'
 - 

8"

4'
 - 

0"

4' - 7 1/2"

3'
 - 

7"

6'
 - 

0"

720400

400

193

72

LAYOUT REVISIONS APPROVED 9-4-2012



ROOF
14' - 0"

6' - 3 1/2" 14' - 0" 5' - 0" 14' - 0" 6' - 3"

45' - 6 1/2" 14' - 1"

NICHIHA SANDSTONE
II "DESERT BEIGE"
FIBER CEMENT PANEL

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY SOLDIER
COURSE

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY

HIGH IMPACT EIFS
CORNICE CROWN
MOULDING PAINTED
SANDY WHITE

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
0' - 0"

ROOF
14' - 0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
0' - 0"

ROOF
14' - 0"

NICHIHA SANDSTONE
II "DESERT BEIGE"
FIBER CEMENT PANEL

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY SOLDIER
COURSE

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY

HIGH IMPACT EIFS
CORNICE CROWN
MOULDING PAINTED
SANDY WHITE

CLEAR ANODIZED
ALUMINUM CANOPY

59' - 7 1/2"

15' - 3 1/2"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
0' - 0"

ROOF
14' - 0"

NICHIHA SANDSTONE
II "DESERT BEIGE"
FIBER CEMENT PANEL

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY SOLDIER
COURSE

ACME BRICK
BURGUNDY

20 GA. DARK BRONZE CAP
FLASHING, GC SUPPLIED

METAL DUMPSTER GATE
CORRUGATED METAL
PAINTED - BROWN SUGAR

RENCHARRISONH F
&   A S S O C I A T E S ,    LT D

809 S.W. A Street, Suite 201
Bentonville, Arkansas 72712
t 479.273.7780
f 479.273.9486
www.hfa-ae.com

S
T
IP
U
LA

T
IO
N
 
F
O
R
 
R
E
U
S
E

T
H
IS
 
D
R
A
W
IN
G
 
W
A
S
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
F
O
R
 
 
U
S
E
 
O
N

A
 
S
P
E
C
IF
IC
 
S
IT
E
 
A
T

SHEET:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DOCUMENT DATE:

ISSUE BLOCK

JO
B 

N
U
M
BE

R:

C
O
N
T
E
M
P
O
R
A
N
E
O
U
S
LY
 
W
IT
H
 
IT
S
 
IS
S
U
E
 
D
A
T
E

O
N
 
( 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
),

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
 
IT
 
IS
 
N
O
T

S
U
IT
A
B
LE
 
F
O
R
 
U
S
E
 
O
N
 
A
 
D
IF
F
E
R
E
N
T
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T

S
IT
E
 
O
R
 
A
T
 
A
 
LA
T
E
R
 
T
IM
E
. 
 
U
S
E
 
O
F
 
T
H
IS

D
R
A
W
IN
G
 
F
O
R
 
R
E
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
O
R
 
E
X
A
M
P
LE
 
O
N

A
N
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
R
E
Q
U
IR
E
S
 
T
H
E
 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

O
F
 
P
R
O
P
E
R
LY
 
LI
C
E
N
S
E
D
 
A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D

E
N
G
IN
E
E
R
S
. 
 
R
E
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
 
O
F
 
T
H
IS
 
D
R
A
W
IN
G

F
O
R
 
R
E
U
S
E
 
O
N
 
A
N
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
IS
 
N
O
T

A
U
T
H
O
R
IZ
E
D
 
A
N
D
 
M
A
Y
 
B
E
 
C
O
N
T
R
A
R
Y
 
T
O
 
T
H
E

LA
W

STORE NO.:

7-
EL

EV
EN

9
/
4
/
2
0
1
2
 
8
:
5
6
:
0
7
 
A
M

C
:
\
U
s
e
rs
\
k
e
ll
y
.g
u
it
ta
r\
D
e
s
k
to
p
\
M
y
 
P
ro
je
c
ts
\
1
2
-
9
9
0
0
7
 
V
e
rd
a
d
 
T
ro
y
, 
M
I_
k
e
ll
y
.g
u
it
ta
r.
rv
t

RB-E

REVIEW BOARD
ELEVATIONS

RF

KJG

08/06/12

3
9
8
4
 
C
R
O
O
K
S
 
R
D

TR
O
Y
, 
M
I 
4
8
0
8
4

12
-
12
-
99
00
7

0
8
/
0
6
/
1
2

T
R
O
Y
, 
M
I

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 WEST ELEVATION - WATTLES ROAD
 3/16" = 1'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION

 3/16" = 1'-0"3 SOUTH ELEVATION
 3/16" = 1'-0"4 NORTH ELEVATION - CROOKS ROAD

 3/16" = 1'-0"5 DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE FRONT ELEVATION
 3/16" = 1'-0"6 DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE SIDE ELEVATION



RENCHARRISONH F
&   A S S O C I A T E S ,    LT D

809 S.W. A Street, Suite 201
Bentonville, Arkansas 72712
t 479.273.7780
f 479.273.9486
www.hfa-ae.com

S
T
IP
U
LA

T
IO
N
 
F
O
R
 
R
E
U
S
E

T
H
IS
 
D
R
A
W
IN
G
 
W
A
S
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D
 
F
O
R
 
 
U
S
E
 
O
N

A
 
S
P
E
C
IF
IC
 
S
IT
E
 
A
T

SHEET:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DOCUMENT DATE:

ISSUE BLOCK

JO
B 

N
U
M
BE

R:

C
O
N
T
E
M
P
O
R
A
N
E
O
U
S
LY
 
W
IT
H
 
IT
S
 
IS
S
U
E
 
D
A
T
E

O
N
 
( 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
),

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
N
D
 
IT
 
IS
 
N
O
T

S
U
IT
A
B
LE
 
F
O
R
 
U
S
E
 
O
N
 
A
 
D
IF
F
E
R
E
N
T
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T

S
IT
E
 
O
R
 
A
T
 
A
 
LA
T
E
R
 
T
IM
E
. 
 
U
S
E
 
O
F
 
T
H
IS

D
R
A
W
IN
G
 
F
O
R
 
R
E
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
O
R
 
E
X
A
M
P
LE
 
O
N

A
N
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
R
E
Q
U
IR
E
S
 
T
H
E
 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

O
F
 
P
R
O
P
E
R
LY
 
LI
C
E
N
S
E
D
 
A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D

E
N
G
IN
E
E
R
S
. 
 
R
E
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
 
O
F
 
T
H
IS
 
D
R
A
W
IN
G

F
O
R
 
R
E
U
S
E
 
O
N
 
A
N
O
T
H
E
R
 
P
R
O
JE
C
T
 
IS
 
N
O
T

A
U
T
H
O
R
IZ
E
D
 
A
N
D
 
M
A
Y
 
B
E
 
C
O
N
T
R
A
R
Y
 
T
O
 
T
H
E

LA
W

STORE NO.:

7-
EL

EV
EN

9
/
4
/
2
0
1
2
 
8
:
5
6
:
1
8
 
A
M

C
:
\
U
s
e
rs
\
k
e
ll
y
.g
u
it
ta
r\
D
e
s
k
to
p
\
M
y
 
P
ro
je
c
ts
\
1
2
-
9
9
0
0
7
 
V
e
rd
a
d
 
T
ro
y
, 
M
I_
k
e
ll
y
.g
u
it
ta
r.
rv
t

RB-P

REVIEW BOARD
PERSPECTIVE

Checker

Author

08/06/12

3
9
8
4
 
C
R
O
O
K
S
 
R
D

TR
O
Y
, 
M
I 
4
8
0
8
4

12
-
12
-
99
00
7

0
8
/
0
6
/
1
2

T
R
O
Y
, 
M
I



PC 2012.09.11 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
 
DATE: September 7, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – 
Proposed Troy Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of 
New King (5500 New King), Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) 
Districts  

 
The applicant, Moiseev/Gordon Associates, Inc. seeks a conditional rezoning of the 
subject parcel from Planned Unit Development to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts  
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Northfield.  A description of this classification is 
attached.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
A public hearing was held for this item on July 10, 2012.  The Planning Commission 
discussed this item at the June 26, 2012 Special/Study meeting and the July 24, 2012 
Special/Study meeting.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4. Minutes from July 10, 2012 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
5. Minutes from the June 26, 2012 and July 24, 2012 Special/Study meetings 

 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-006  Troy Plaza  Sec 8\PC Memo 09 11 12.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy 
Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New King), 
Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts  
 
Proposed Resolution # PC-2012-09- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the PUD to OM and CB conditional rezoning request, as per Section 16.04 of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the West side of Crooks, North side of 
New King (5500 New King), in Section 8, being approximately 6 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reasons:  

 
1. The application is consistent with the Master Plan. 
2. The application is compatible with existing zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The applicant has proposed conditions that reduce potential impacts of the 

proposed CB and OM districts on abutting properties. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION PASSED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-006  Troy Plaza  Sec 8\Proposed PC Resolution 2012 09 11.doc 



TROY PLAZA, 5500 NEW KING

6/12/2012

Legend

1: 1,404

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1170234 234Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



TROY PLAZA, 5500 NEW KING

6/12/2012

Legend

1: 1,404

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1170234 234Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



109

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Northfi eld: 

A Focus On Innovation

A complement to the Smart Zone, but with • 
an even broader mix of uses
Outlot development to provide services to • 
workers in the area
Consistent site design throughout the • 
District to create a unique identity

The Master Plan identifi es two primary 
districts for the encouragement of 21st Century, 
Knowledge Economy business development.  
The Smart Zone is situated along Big Beaver 
Road and an area to the south, along Interstate 
75.  Northfi eld, the second offi  ce and research 

area, is similar to the Smart Zone in its 

makeup, but will refl ect its own unique style of 

development.

In terms of use, the emphasis in Northfi eld 
will be placed on offi  ce and planned research-
offi  ce uses.  Other uses primarily relating to the 
support of workers and activities in Northfi eld, 
such as supporting commercial uses, will also 
be considered on a limited basis.  Residential 
uses, traditional industrial uses, and regional 
commercial uses will be encouraged within 
mixed-use developments only when they are 

designed to support the primary function of the 
Northfi eld area.

Medical, professional, general, service-related 
offi  ce uses, and research –based uses, especially 
those planned in a campus or park-like setting, 
will be the primary focus in Northfi eld.  These 
uses are intended to be enclosed within a 
building, and in the case of research and 
development uses, external eff ects are not to be 
experienced beyond their property boundaries.

NORTHFIELD



110 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

The contemporary architectural image • 
should be continued.

Infi ll construction will provide a physical link • 
between semi-isolated towers.  

Demarcated crosswalks, an internal and • 
external walk system and plazas/pocket 
parks will support physical linkages.

Higher-density housing of twenty units per • 
acre will be encouraged at the immediate 
periphery.

Streets will be framed and the public right-• 
of-way space will be delineated.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Primary parking areas will be within rear • 
or interior side yards and separated into 
modest-sized components by storm water 
management and landscaping.

Walks will connect businesses, adjacent • 
developments and public sidewalks.

Storm water detention should be captured in • 
pedestrian friendly landscape designs.

Outdoor cafes, plazas, pocket parks and • 
similar pedestrian amenities will be key 
features.

Mass transit stops should be accommodated • 
(see page 115).

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Ground level story should have a minimum • 
height of twelve feet from fi nished fl oor to 
fi nished ceiling.  

Facades should be half transparent glass. • 

Entries should be well-defi ned.   • 

Fenestration on the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing.

Successful infill development providng services to office developments in Northfield; Photo by Brent Savidant



 
 
  

 Date: September 4, 2012 
 

Conditional Rezoning, Special Use Permit and 
Preliminary Site Plan Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant Moiseev / Gordon Associates, Inc 
 
Project Name: Troy Plaza  
 
Plan Date: July 16, 2012 
 
Location: Northwest corner of Crooks Road and Corporate Drive 
 
Zoning: PUD  
 
Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City Council 

for Conditional Rezoning, Special Use Permit, and Preliminary Site Plan.   
 
Required Information:          Deficiencies noted. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF DEVELOPMENT AND PROCEDURE 
 
We recently received a site plan and accompanying documents for a Conditional Rezoning for the parcel 
bounded by Crooks Road to the east, Corporate Drive to the south, and New King Street to the west. 
The applicant proposes to conditional rezone the site from PUD to Community Business (CM) for the 
portion of the site that fronts on Crooks Road and Office Mixed Use (OM) for the back end of the 
property that fronts on New King Drive.    
 
After multiple conceptual reviews by the Planning Commission and revisions, the applicant has 
submitted a conditional rezoning to be developed in multiple phases.  The first phase is the 
development of the front part of the site that is adjacent to Crooks Road, which includes a drive-
through McDonalds, a mixed use building with a drive-through, and a restaurant building.  The back part 
of the site which fronts on New King Street will be phase 2 of the development.  The future use of this 
site has not been determined and will require full-site plan review prior to that approval.   



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

2 

 
The proposed development requires the following:  
1. Conditional rezoning from PUD to CB zoning for front part of site that fronts on Crooks Road.  

Conditions provided by the applicant include:  
o Site Plan as submitted 
o The immediate development of the first two buildings of Phase I, (CB District), once permits 

are obtained.  
o The corner building of Phase I will not be marketed to a bank, a chain drug store or any 

other vehicular intensive use.  
o  The details of the corner building shall be subject to planning approval and be modified by 

administrative approval with-in their jurisdiction.  
o The second drive-thru location in Phase I will run only with the first tenant occupancy and 

will expire when the first tenant surrenders the space.  
2. Conditional rezoning from PUD to OM for the rear part of the site that fronts on New King Street.  

Conditions provided by the applicant include:  
o The OM parcel (designated as Phase II) will only be marketed as either an office building or 

a hotel as presented in the approval package.  
o Prior to the development of Phase II, Developer shall provide the City with a traffic and 

parking study analysis. 
3. Preliminary Site Plan approval for CB zoned portion of the site. 
4. Special Use for McDonalds drive-through.  
5. Special Use for retail building drive-through. 
 
Though we have tried to be as succinct as possible, we recognize that this review is rather lengthy.  As a 
result we have divided it into four sections: 1). Conditional Rezoning Analysis; 2). Site Plan Review; 3) 
Standards for Approval for Special Uses; and 4). Summary of Recommendations.  
 

PART 1: CONDTIONAL REZONING 
 
SUMMARY OF CONDITIONS 
 
 
The site is currently zoned Planned 
Unit Development.  Conditions 
offered by the applicant include:   
 
1. Site Plan as submitted for the CB 

zoned portion of development 
2. The immediate development of 

the first two buildings of Phase I, 
(CB District), once permits are 
obtained.  

3. The corner building of Phase I 
will not be marketed to a bank, a 
chain drug store or any other 
vehicular intensive use.  

4.  The details of the corner 
building shall be subject to 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

3 

planning approval and be modified by administrative approval with-in their jurisdiction.  
5. The OM parcel (designated as Phase II) will only be marketed as either an office building or a hotel 

as presented in the approval package.  
6. Prior to the development of Phase II, Developer shall provide the City with a traffic and parking 

study analysis. 
 
Three issues for applicant clarification:  
 

1. In regards to condition #2, does the immediate development of the first two buildings of Phase 
1 include the parking, drive-aisles, and building pad for the corner building?  

2. In regards to condition #3, on the site plan and other documents the applicant notes that the 
corner building is intended for restaurant use.  Is the applicant proposing the use of this building 
for restaurant use only or is the applicant proposing that if restaurant use is not marketable, 
any other use is permitted in the CB district other than bank or drug store?  

3. In regards to condition #5, the applicant should clarify if this condition limits the future 
development of OM portion to office or hotel use only or if it permits all uses allowed in the 
OM district. 

 
We support the proposed conditions, contingent upon clarification of the condition #2, #3 and #5, and 
the applicant addressing certain site planning issues (see site plan review section for more details).   
 
Items to be Addressed:  1). Clarify if condition #2 requires the development of the parking, drive-aisles, 
and building pad for the corner building as part of Phase 1; 2). Clarify if condition #3 limits the future 
building to restaurant use only or any other use permitted in the CB district other than bank or drug 
store; 3). Clarify if condition #5 limits the future development of OM portion to office or hotel use only or 
if it permits all uses allowed in the OM district.; and 4). Address enclosed site plan issues. 
 
SECTION 16.04.C.3 
 
The Zoning Ordinance identifies five (5) findings that the Plan Commission should evaluate when 
considering a Conditional Rezoning petition (Section 16.04.C).  A Conditional Rezoning may only be 
approved upon a finding and determination that all of the following are satisfied: 
 

a) The conditions, proposed development, and/or proposed use of the land are designed or 
proposed for public health, safety, and welfare purposes. 
 
Provided clarification and specific site plan issues are addressed, the applicant has offered 
conditions which protect public health, safety, and welfare.  The specific uses, and 
development as a whole will greatly enhance the area and provide alternative uses to the 
office oriented market.  Congregating complementary uses will allow for reduction in 
automobile dependence, which increases public health, safety, and welfare.   

 
b) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are not in material conflict with 

the Master Plan, or, if there is material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one 
of the following: 

I. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
II. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 

III. An error in the Master Plan. 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

4 

 
The proposed development is not in material conflict and is consistent with the Master Plan.  
The Master Plan recognizes that a significant area of the City has been devoted to uses that 
may be conductive to be redeveloped to other uses.  This site is located in the Northfield area 
of the Master Plan, which calls for “…other uses primarily relating to the support of workers 
and activities in Northfield, such as supporting commercial uses, will also be considered on a 
limited basis.”  Medical, professional, general, service-related office uses, and research–based 
uses are the primary focus in Northfield. However understanding the changing nature of the 
office market, a lack of commercial and dining amenities in the immediate area, proximity to 
I-75, and a renewed focus on providing a mix of land uses, the proposed additional use types 
are appropriate for this area.  The applicant has chosen OM and CB zoning districts in due to 
the applicant’s desired uses, consideration of the surrounding zoning, and consideration of 
the Master Plan.  The proposed uses will fully support and compliment the surrounding office 
uses in the surrounding area.   

 
c) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are in accordance with all terms 

and provisions of the zoning district to which the land is to be rezoned, except as otherwise 
allowed in the Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 
The proposed conditions are in accordance with all terms of the CB and OM zoning districts.   
 

d) Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development.  
 
All necessary public services, utilities, and facilities already adequately serve this site. Any 
permitted uses and development within the CB and OM district would not require any 
additional public services and facilities; however private utilities including water will be 
reviewed as part of the building permit process.      

 
e) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use shall insure compatibility with 

adjacent uses of land. 
 

The site is surrounded by RC, Research Center and OM, Office Mixed Use zoning, and in 
proximity to CB, Community Business and O, Office zoning.  The applicant has chosen OM and 
CB zoning districts in due to the applicant’s desired uses, consideration of the surrounding 
zoning, and consideration of the Master Plan.  The proposed uses will fully support and 
compliment the surrounding office uses in the surrounding area.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  none. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

5 

 

PART 2: SITE PLAN 
 
We have only conducted a site plan review for the CB zoned portion of the development.  A condition 
of the rezoning offered by the applicant states that a site plan review, including a traffic and parking 
analysis study, will be conducted at a future date for the OM portion of the development.   
 
BUILDING ORIENTATION AND OVERALL SITE LAYOUT 
 
We compliment the applicant in providing a variety of uses on the site including office, retail, fast-food, 
and restaurant.  In addition, we support the applicant including a second story on the retail building.  
This adds a sense of desired scale and presence to the site.   We note that this is a very tough site to 
develop due to curb cut issues and a parcel that fronts on three streets.  However large parcels such as 
this present an opportunity to provide building integration and connectivity.   We find this site to be an 
opportunity to develop a well-integrated site, with a mix of varied uses that support each other and 
neighboring properties.  In prior reviews we had expressed concerns regarding a lack of site integration, 
circulation issues particularly due to retail drive-through, and a lack of pedestrian amenities.  However, 
based on the revised site plan, we compliment the applicant addressing our concerns.   The applicant 
has made the following changes to the site plan to greatly increase site connectivity and provide for 
better and safer circulation:  

• Rearranged internal curbing and drive-aisles, specifically around the retail drive-through. 
• Provided sufficient and safe stacking for the retail drive-through.  
• Removed parking in front of the retail building and replaced with large outdoor seating/plaza 

area.  This outdoor seating area is more attractive and inviting. 
• Provided outdoor dining at McDonalds. 
• Provided better pedestrian access and circulation, including a walk that runs the length of the 

entire site and bisects it north and south. 
• Compartmentalized parking areas with curbing and landscaping to provide better site 

circulation.  
• Consolidated trash and loading areas. 

 
Due to changes in the site plan including revised parking and drive-aisle orientation, overall we find that 
the site provides greater integration and cohesiveness.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  none. 
 
SITE PARKING 
 
The applicant is providing a total of 221 spaces including a proposed landbanking of 11 spaces.  After 
site buildout, if parking is determined to be an issue, the City can require these 11 spaces be 
development in accordance with City standards.   
 
 
 Required Provided 
McDonalds: 
1 space per 70 net sq/ft 

(4,200 sq.ft / 70) = 60 spaces 210 spaces + 11 land 
banked spaces  



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

6 

Retail Mixed Use Building: 
 1 space per 250 gross sq/ft  
 

(16,600 sq.ft / 250) = 66 spaces 

Corner Restaurant: 
1 space for each 2 seats, based 
on maximum seating capacity as 
determined by the building code 
in effect in the City 
 

TBD but based on remaining 
spaces the restaurant can have a 
maximum of 190 seats.   

   
Barrier Free 7 8 
Bicycle Parking 2 4 
Loading 0 2 
Total 220 automobile + 2 bicycle 210 spaces + 11 land 

banked + 4 bicycle 
 
As noted in the conditions provided by the applicant, we are seeking clarification on future use of the 
corner building.  Restaurant uses are the highest intensity uses in regards to parking.  Though the final 
user of the future standalone restaurant has yet to be determined, based on the parking allocated for 
the McDonalds and retail building, there is sufficient parking to accommodate a restaurant up to 190 
seats.   Based on the provided site plan we find parking to be sufficient for the CB portion of the 
development.   
 
The applicant has shown bicycle parking adjacent to the McDonalds and to the rear of the mixed use 
retail building.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Confirmation from applicant regarding the potential user and potential number 
of seats for the corner restaurant. 
 
AREA BULK AND DENSITY-CB Parcel  
 
Zoning standards for the CB parcel as outlined below:  
 

 
The site complies with all setback and bulk regulations.   

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front 10 foot setback 65 foot setback 
(McDonalds and Retail) 
 
10 foot setback (Corner 
Restaurant) 

Complies 

Rear 30 foot setback Not Applicable Not applicable 

Side 20 foot setback 75 foot setback Complies 

Maximum Height 30 feet, 2.0 story 2 stories, 28 feet Complies 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

7 

 
Items to be Addressed: none 
 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access and Circulation: 
 
The site provides points of access off Crooks Road, Corporate Drive, and New King Street.  While it is 
likely that most vehicular access will utilize Crooks Road, providing access via three points will 
adequately distribute traffic.   
 
The applicant recently met with staff and Steve Dearing, the City’s traffic consultant, to address site 
circulation issues.  The applicant has addressed these concerns.  There are clear north/south and 
east/west circulation patterns.  Furthermore, the access to and circulation from the drive-through for 
the retail building has been redesigned to provide safe and efficient site circulation.   We find site 
circulation sufficient.   
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
There is an existing 8-foot wide sidewalk along Crooks Road and 5-foot wide sidewalk along Corporate 
Drive and New King Street.  The applicant is providing crossswalks from Crooks Road to the McDonalds 
and the retail building.   In addition, the applicant is providing an internal sidewalk that runs the entire 
length of the development and bisects the development north/south.   Pedestrian access is sufficient.  
 
Items to be Addressed: none    
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The application includes a detailed landscape plan.  The plan includes a mix of deciduous and evergreen 
trees, and shrubs.   All proposed species fall within Troy regulations and are not prohibited.  The plan 
includes a detailed planting schedule and detailed calculations regarding landscaping requirements.   
 
 
 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Parking Lot Planting (1 
tree per 8 spaces) 

210 spaces = 26 trees 65 trees Complies 

Frontage Screening (1 
tree for every 30 lineal 
feet)  
 
 

Crooks: 490 feet = 16 
trees 

14 trees Short by 2 trees; 
however applicant 
greatly exceeds 
greenbelt planting 
along Corporate and 
New King.   

Corporate: 590 feet = 
20 

27 trees  Complies 

New King: 350 feet = 12 14 trees Complies 
Site Landscaping (20 % 53,645 sq/ft 115,960 sq/ft (43%) Complies 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

8 

of site) 
 
While the applicant is short by two (2) trees along Crooks Road, the applicant greatly exceeds the 
landscape requirements along Corporate Drive, New King Road, parking lot planting, and overall site 
landscaping.     
 
Items to be Addressed: none 
 
LIGHTING 
 
The proposed site lighting consists of twenty-four (24) pole mounted lights.  The applicant has provided 
a lighting (photometric) plan.   
 
Photometrics 
The applicant meets all photometric requirements as outlined Article 13.   
 
Parking Lot Lighting:  
The proposed parking lot fixtures meet ordinance requirements; however the applicant has not 
indicated pole height.  Pole height shall not exceed thirty (30) feet.  The applicant shall turn-off or 
reduce lighting between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise.   
 
Building Lighting: 
The applicant has not indicated any building lighting.  If building lighting is proposed, fixtures should be 
provided.  
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Indicate lighting pole height; 2). Lights shall be turned-off or reduced 
between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise; and 3). Indicate if any building lights are proposed.  If so, 
submit cut sheets.   
 
SIGNS 
 
The applicant has shown four (4) ground signs and one (1) development signage on the site plan.  In 
addition, each building will have wall signage.  Detailed signage is not required until final site plan 
review.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  none 
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
Floor plans, elevations, and sample material photos have been provided for the McDonalds, retail 
building, and restaurant building.   The architecture complies with the Supplemental Design standards 
including the use of material changes, projection, façade articulation and fenestration to provide 
architectural detail and the use of windows as well as changes in horizontal and vertical scaling, 
variations in material, pattern, and color, to provide ground story activation.  See supplemental design 
standards below for more information.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  none 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

9 

SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
Section 4.13.D outlines supplemental design standards:   
 

 
Modification to Setback Requirements 

a. In CB Districts, no building shall be closer than seventy-five (75) feet from the boundary of any 
single-family residential zoning district.  Not Applicable  

 
b. No side yards are required along the interior side lot lines of the District or along side lot lines in 

common with any non-residential district, provided all related conditions of this Ordinance are 
met.  If walls or structures facing such interior or common side lot lines contain windows, or 
other openings, side yards of not less than ten (10) feet shall be provided. The proposed site 
plan complies with this requirement.  

 

 
Façade Variation 

a. The maximum length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks 
shall be thirty (30) feet. Façade articulation or architectural design variations for building walls 
facing the street are required to ensure that the building is not monotonous in appearance. 
Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); cornices, varying building materials or pilasters 
shall be used to break up the mass of a single building. 

 
McDonalds.  The proposed façade match the current corporate design for McDonalds.  The 
McDonalds building complies with this requirement. 

 
Retail Building. Through the use of varied materials, façade articulations and projections the 
retail building complies with this requirement.   

 
Restaurant Building. Through the use of varied materials, façade articulations and projections 
the restaurant building complies with this requirement.   

 
 

 
Pedestrian Access / Entrance 

a. Primary Entrance. The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located facing the right-of-way.  All entrances are clearly identifiable and facing the right-of-
way 

 
b. Pedestrian Connection. A pedestrian connection shall provide a clear, obvious, publicly-

accessible connection between the primary street upon which the building fronts and the 
building. The pedestrian connection shall comply with the following: 
I. Fully paved and maintained surface not less than five (5) feet in width. 

II. Unit pavers or concrete distinct from the surrounding parking and drive lane surface. 
III. Located either within a raised median or between wheel stops to protect pedestrians 

from vehicle overhangs where parking is adjacent. 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

10 

The applicant is providing crossswalks from Crooks Road to the McDonalds, and the retail 
building.   In addition, the applicant is providing an internal sidewalk that runs the entire 
length of the development and bisects the development north/south.   Pedestrian access is 
sufficient. 

 

 
Off-Street Parking Location 

a. Parking shall not be located in the front yard. Complies  
 

b. No more than fifty (50) percent of the total site’s linear feet along the front building line shall be 
occupied by parking lot. Complies  

 
c. For a corner lot, the cumulative total of the site’s linear feet along any building line facing a 

right-of-way occupied by parking shall be no more than sixty (60) percent, and the building shall 
be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to the intersection. Complies 

 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
PART 3: STANDARDS  
 
 
This section is broken into two parts:  

1. Use Standards and Special Use Standards for McDonalds Drive-Through 
2. Use Standards and Special Use Standards for Retail Building Drive-Through 

 
McDonalds Drive-Through 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.10 provides specific use requirements for drive-through facilities.  All standards outlined in 
Section 6.10 have been met.  
 

A. Ingress and egress to drive-through facilities shall be part of the internal circulation of the site 
and integrated with the overall site design.  Clear identification and delineation between the 
drive-through facility and the parking lot shall be provided. Drive-through facilities shall be 
designed in a manner which promotes pedestrian and vehicular safety.  The ingress and egress 
for the drive-through is clearly intergraded into the overall site design.  There is clear 
identification and delineation between the drive-through facility and the parking lot.  

 
B. Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a building. Multiple-lane drive-throughs 

shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible from a public thoroughfare. Canopy 
design shall be compatible with the design of the principal building and incorporate similar 
materials and architectural elements.  The single-lane drive-through is located to the side of 
the building.   
 

C.  Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

11 

1. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum 
of twelve (12) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 

2.  If proposed, an escape lane shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet in width to allow 
other vehicles to pass those waiting to be served. 

3. The number of stacking spaces per service lane shall be provided for the uses listed 
below. When a use is not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street 
stacking space for the use with similar needs, as determined at the discretion of the 
Zoning Administration, shall apply. 

 
 Table 6.10 
Use Stacking Space Per Service Lane 
Banks, Pharmacy, Photo Service, and Dry Cleaning 4 
Restaurants with Drive-Through 10 
Auto Washes (Self-Service) 
   Entry 2 
   Exit 1 
Auto Washes (Automatic) 
   Entry 8 
   Exit 2 

 
The applicant meets all drive-through standards. 

 
Special Use Standards of Approval 
 
In the CB District, restaurants with drive-through service are permitted as a special use. For any special 
use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 
materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a 
Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on 
the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.”  Section 9.03 states that before 
approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses. The proposed use is located in an area intended for 
high traffic with similar auto-oriented uses.  The proposed use will not have any detrimental 
impact and will add a valuable service to the area. 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans. The use is common to a regional commercial area, and complies with the Master 
Plan. 

 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

12 

accommodated in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic 
congestion. The proposed site plan has adequate circulation for a drive-through use with accessory 
trash pickup and loading area and which does not cause any traffic conflicts.   With the nature of 
the use as one that does not have acute peak traffic times for very large populations, and which is 
located in a high-intensity area, this condition is satisfied. 

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden. The proposed use should not 
produce any additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond what 
would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. The applicant has addressed all applicable 
ordinance standards. 

 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use. The proposed use is located in an 
area intended for auto-oriented uses.  The proposed use will not have any detrimental impact and 
will add a valuable service to the area.  The proposed use is appropriate for the character and 
nature of the areas.  

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas. The proposed site plan has adequate circulation for a drive-

through use, which does not cause any traffic conflicts.    
 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. The proposed use does not include any outdoor activity, 

storage, or work areas, thus this standard is not applicable.   
 
4. Hours of operation. The proposed use is in an area where similar uses provide service from early 

morning to evening.  This is a high-intensity area and potential impact of the purposed uses is 
similar to those in the surrounding area.   

 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light. There are no 

anticipated secondary impacts after initial construction in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: None 
 
Retail Building Drive-Through 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.10 provides specific use requirements for drive-through facilities.  All standards outlined in 
Section 6.10 have been met.  



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

13 

 
A. Ingress and egress to drive-through facilities shall be part of the internal circulation of the site 

and integrated with the overall site design. Clear identification and delineation between the 
drive-through facility and the parking lot shall be provided. Drive-through facilities shall be 
designed in a manner which promotes pedestrian and vehicular safety. The applicant has 
designed the site so that the retail building drive-through is clearly intergraded with the 
overall site design.  Through the use of curbing, there is clear identification and delineation 
between the drive-through facility and the parking lot.  

 
B. Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a building. Multiple-lane drive-throughs 

shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible from a public thoroughfare. Canopy 
design shall be compatible with the design of the principal building and incorporate similar 
materials and architectural elements. The single-lane drive-through is located to the side of 
the building.   

 
C.  Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 

 
1. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum 

of twelve (12) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 
2.  If proposed, an escape lane shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet in width to allow 

other vehicles to pass those waiting to be served. 
3. The number of stacking spaces per service lane shall be provided for the uses listed 

below. When a use is not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street 
stacking space for the use with similar needs, as determined at the discretion of the 
Zoning Administration, shall apply. 

 
 Table 6.10 
Use Stacking Space Per Service Lane 
Banks, Pharmacy, Photo Service, and Dry Cleaning 4 
Restaurants with Drive-Through 10 
Auto Washes (Self-Service) 
   Entry 2 
   Exit 1 
Auto Washes (Automatic) 
   Entry 8 
   Exit 2 

 
The applicant meets all drive-through standards. 

 
Special Use Standards of Approval 
 
In the CB District, restaurants with drive-through service are permitted as a special use. For any special 
use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 
materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a 
Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on 
the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.”  Section 9.03 states that before 
approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning Commission shall consider: 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

14 

1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 
harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses. The proposed use is located in an area intended for 
high traffic with similar auto-oriented uses.  The proposed use will not have any detrimental 
impact and will add a valuable service to the area. 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans. The use is common to a regional commercial area, and complies with the Master 
Plan. 

 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively 
accommodated in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic 
congestion. The proposed site plan has adequate circulation for a drive-through use and which 
does not cause any traffic conflicts.   With the nature of the use as one that does not have acute 
peak traffic times for very large populations, and which is located in a high-intensity area, this 
condition is satisfied. 

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden. The proposed use should not 
produce any additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond what 
would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. The applicant has addressed all applicable 
ordinance standards. 

 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use. The proposed use is located in an 
area intended for high traffic with similar auto-oriented uses.  The proposed use will not have any 
detrimental impact and will add a valuable service to the area.  The proposed use is appropriate 
for the character and nature of the areas.  

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas. The proposed site plan has adequate circulation for a drive-

through use with accessory trash pickup and loading area and which does not cause any traffic 
conflicts.   Provided further clarification from the applicant regarding the corner building use, 
parking is sufficient.   



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

15 

 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. The proposed use does not include any outdoor activity, 

storage, or work areas, thus this standard is not applicable.   
 
4. Hours of operation. The proposed use is in an area where similar uses provide service to regional 

commercial customers from early morning to evening.  This is a high-intensity area and 
automobile service uses are common in such areas. 

 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light. There are no 

anticipated secondary impacts after initial construction in this regard. 
 
 
PART 4: SUMMARY   
 
 
We compliment the applicant in providing a variety of uses on the site including office, retail, fast-food, 
and restaurant.  In addition, we support the applicant including a second story on the retail building.  
This adds a sense of desired scale and presence to the site.   Based on the revised site plan, we 
compliment the applicant addressing our concerns.   The applicant has made the following changes to 
the site plan to greatly increase site connectivity and provide for better and safer circulation.  Due to 
changes in the site plan including building orientation and parking and drive-aisle orientation, overall we 
find that the site provides greater cohesiveness.   
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meets requirements.  The remaining 
items can be handled administratively.  As such, we recommend the Planning Commission recommend 
to the City Council approval for the Conditional Rezoning, and grant approval for Special Use for the 
retail building drive-through, Special use for the McDonalds drive-through, and preliminary site plan 
conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following requirements for final site plan approval: 

1. Clarify if condition #2 requires the development of the parking, drive-aisles, and building pad for 
the corner building as part of Phase 1;  

2. Clarify if condition #3 limits the future building to restaurant use only or any other use permitted 
in the CB district other than bank or drug store;  

3. Clarify if condition #5 limits the future development of OM portion to office or hotel use only or if 
it permits all uses allowed in the OM district; 

4. Indicate lighting pole height;  
5. Lights shall be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise; and 
6. Indicate if any building lights are proposed.  If so, submit cut sheets.   

 
Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
 
 
 
 
CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 



Troy Plaza Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

16 

 
 
  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number 
CR 006) – Proposed Troy Plaza, West side of Crooks, South of Square Lake 
(5500 New King), Section 8, From PUD 13 (Planned Unit Development 13) to CB 
(Community Business) and OM (Office Mixed Use) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant said the petitioner submitted revised plans yesterday.  Mr. Savidant 
recommended to go forward with the Public Hearing but to postpone the item to a 
future date to allow time for internal departmental review and time for the 
Planning Consultant to prepare a report on the revised plans.  He advised the 
petitioner that the application must meet the conditional rezoning agreement and 
briefly addressed the petitioner’s request for flexibility with respect to the 
proposed hotel or office building. 
 
Mr. Hutson clarified his position with conditional rezoning applications and said 
he is not in favor of this application at this point in time because the petitioner is 
asking for flexibility with the project and is not providing a clear-cut plan. 
 
Mr. Krent briefly addressed the internal traffic flow with respect to getting to the 
McDonald’s restaurant from the proposed hotel or office. 
 
Mr. Savidant suggested the possibility of submitting two complete site plans for 
approval; Option A for the proposed hotel and Option B for the proposed office 
building. 
 
The petitioner, Michael Gordon of Moiseev/Gordon Associates, was present.  He 
stated they are conscientiously working with the landscape architect to provide 
more green space. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-046 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission postpone the item to the July 24, 
2012 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 26, 2012 
  
 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING 
 

10. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy 
Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New King), 
Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts  
 
Mr. Savidant announced the petitioner submitted three color renderings shown in the 
Board’s digital presentation this evening but were not available at the time the agenda 
packet was distributed. 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief report on the proposed conditional rezoning.  Mr. Carlisle 
addressed site planning revisions to assist in creating a more cohesive and integrated 
site. 
 
The petitioner, Michael Gordon of Moiseev/Gordon Associates, was present.  Mr. 
Gordon addressed the reason for submitting a rezoning application versus a PUD 
development.  He indicated the proposed development would be constructed in phases; 
first phase, McDonald’s restaurant; second phase, two-story office/retail building; third 
phase, free standing restaurant; and final phase, hotel. 
 
There was general discussion on the following: 
• Drive throughs; location, future uses. 
• Position of buildings; closer to Crooks. 
• Pedestrian traffic; walkability. 
• Retention; stormwater management.  
• Viability of hotel. 
• Elimination of parking; provide additional green space. 
• Internal directional signage. 
• Outdoor restaurant seating. 
 
Tom Geigich, real estate manager for McDonald’s corporate offices, was also present.  
Mr. Geigich addressed the restaurant customer base, internal directional signage 
relating to the restaurant entrance and drive through, and outdoor seating. 
 
The Board gave a general nod of approval of the proposed conditional rezoning 
application. 

 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-006  Troy Plaza  Sec 8\Minutes\2012 06 26 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 

10. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed 
Troy Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 
New King), Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office 
Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a review on the conditional rezoning application.  He noted the 
applicant is asking for flexibility with the two proposed buildings that face New 
King.  Mr. Carlisle said the concept and uses of the application are agreeable but 
there are concerns with the site plan, as noted in his report dated July 20, 2012.  
He stated the applicant understands the Planning Department’s position and is 
amenable to working with the department toward a solution. 
 
The petitioner, Michael Gordon of MGA Architects, was present.  He indicated a 
need for flexibility with the proposed restaurant and hotel to accommodate the 
various standards set forth with different restaurant chains and hotel flagships.  
Mr. Gordon said the two front buildings facing Crooks are locked-in as a 
McDonald’s restaurant and a mixed retail/office use. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-052 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission postpones consideration of the 
proposed conditional rezoning application until such time that the applicant 
submits a site plan that complies with the Zoning Ordinance, and meets with staff 
to discuss the issues listed in the Planning Commission report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



    

 

 
Revised August 29, 2012 
Revised July 18, 2012 
May 18, 2012 
 
City of Troy 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 
248-524-3364 
 
Re: Troy Plaza 
Job No. 06418.02 
 
We are requesting a conditional rezoning of the above referenced property.  This request is sought voluntarily 
and we will not modify the design, once approved, in any way that will be inconsistent with the conditions 
placed on the rezoning. 
 
The proposed plans, elevations, site amenities, will be built-in accordance with the approved plans and all 
conditions agreed to will be executed with-in the parameters and constraints imposed by the agreement that the 
Appeal Board votes into place. 
 
Additional conditions proposed include: 

A. The immediate development of the first two buildings of Phase I, (CB District), once permits are 
obtained. 

B. The corner building of Phase I will not be marketed to a bank, a chain drug store or any other vehicular 
intensive use. 

C. The details of the building shall be subject to planning approval and be modified by administrative 
approval with-in their jurisdiction. 

D. The OM parcel (designated as Phase II) will only be marketed as either an office building or a hotel as 
presented in the approval package. 

E. The second drive-thru location in Phase I will run only with the first tenant occupancy and will expire 
when the first tenant surrenders the space. 

F. Prior to the development of Phase II, Developer shall provide the City with a traffic and parking study 
analysis. 

 
We thank you for consideration of our proposal. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Casco 
May 7, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Michael J. Gordon, RA 



    

 

 
Revised August 29, 2012 
Revised July 18, 2012 
May 18, 2012 
 
City of Troy 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 
248-524-3364 
 
Re: Troy Plaza        
Job No. 06418.02 
 
We believe that the rezoning request is consistent with the master plan.  This plan would provide much needed 
retail business and service uses for persons in the immediate areas specifically the adjacent office district.  This 
district will allow and encourage the on-site integration of business and services lacking in the vicinity when 
you view the corridor along Crooks Road as a total community. 
 
Further, the property rezoning matches a parcel, several parcels, south of the property which has a similar mix of 
uses as proposed here and the proposed CB district aligns in depth with the depth of that parcel. 
 
The buildings will encourage pedestrian interaction with adjoining parcels which is further encouraged in the 
language of the district.  The hotel or office building will also encourage pedestrian traffic.  The hotel as well 
would extend the districts livelihood into the morning and evening hours. This will enhance security as well as 
create a reduced need for parking as hours extend and use intensity spreads over the day. 
 
The property uses will enhance the marketability of the adjoining office districts by offering convenient and 
multiple dining and shopping options, as well as potential hotel rooms for business travelers.  Further, the 
walkability will further reinforce the location as a desirable place to do business. 
 
We believe that the integration of this project into the adjacent developments will compliment, supplement and 
enhance the environment and build up the area as a desirable business address. 
 
We hope you look favorably upon our request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michael J. Gordon, RA 
































	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	August 28, 2012 Special/Study Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 978)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Aerial and Zoning Maps
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 10-17)
	Site Plan (pgs 18-27)

	6. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Aerial and Zoning Maps
	Master Plan Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 34-49)
	July 10, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes
	June 26, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes
	July 24, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes
	Petitioner Correspondence (53-55)
	Site Plan (pgs 56-70)

	7. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



